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AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Sawmills Town Council

Sawmills Town Hall

Tuesday, November 18, 2014

Call To Order
Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance
Adopt Agenda

Approve Meeting Minutes
A. October 21st, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes

Public Comment

Recognitions:

A. Recycle Rewards

B. Yard of Month Winners
C. Colton Hartley

Financial Malters;

Capital Reserve Fund Budget Amendment Co!
Employee Longevity Pay

FY 2013-2014 Audit Presentation

Approve Anditors Contract for FY 2014-2015

Moo

Public Comment:

Updates:

A. Code Enforcement Monthly Report
B. Administrators Report

C. Council Comment

Adjourn

6:00 pm

rrection

Caldwell County Smart Start Donation Request

Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby
Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby
Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby

Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby

Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby

Mayor Pro-Temn Trena McRary Kirby

Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eckard

Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eclard
Administrator Seth Eckard

Administrator Seth Eckard
Administrator Seth Eckard
Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby

Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby
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TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014
TOWN OF SAWMILLS REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

6:00 PM
COUNCIL PRESENT STAFF PRESENT
Trena McRary Kirby Seth Eckard
Joe Wesson Julie Good
Jeff Wilson Terry Taylor
Johnny Wilson Elinor Hiltz

Gerelene Blevins

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby called the meeting to order.

INVOCATION: Chaplin Jason Hines with the Sawmills Volunteer Fire Department gave
the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

ADOPT AGENDA: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked for a motion to adopt the
agenda with the following changes: add Donation to Caldwell County Chamber of
Commerce as agenda item 10B.

Joe Wesson made a motion, and Jeff Wilson seconded, to adopt the agenda with changes.
All were in favor.

APPROVE SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES: Mayor Pro-
Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked for a motion to approve the September 16, 2014 regular
meeting minutes.

Joe Wesson made a motion, and Gerelene Blevins seconded, to approve the minutes. All
were in favor.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked if anyone had any
questions or comments at this time.

No one wished to speak.
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RECOGNITIONS:

RECYCLE REWARDS WINNER: Town Administrator Seth Eckard announced Ms.
Robin Wright as the October Recycle Rewards winner. A credit of twenty-eight dollars
($28.00) will be added to her sanitation bill and her certificate will be available at the Town
Hall for pick up.

No Council action was required.

YARD OF THE MONTH WINNERS: Town Administrator Seth Eckard announced that
Erick and Hollie Powell, from the 28630 zip code, and Todd and Lanell Berry, from the
28638 zip code, as the October Yard of the Month winners. Town Administrator Seth
Eckard stated that both certificates would be available at the Town Hall for pick up.

No Council action was required.

RECOGNITION OF HOLLY M ANNAS: Town Administrator Seth Eckard and Town
Council congratulated Holly M Annas for coming in 16" overall, and 2™ in her category, at
the Long course Duathlon World Championships in Switzerland.

No Council action was required.

RECOGNITION OF GIRL SCOUT TROOP 10147: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary
Kirby announced that on October 4, 2014, Girl Scout Troop 10147 participated in the “Big
Sweep” supported by the Soil and Water Conservation of Caldwell County. The troop
cleaned up around 19 bags of trash and debris at Sawmills Veterans Park.

No Council action was required.
PUBLIC HEARING: PROTEST PETITION TEXT AMENDMENT:

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked for a motion to
open the public hearing,

Joe Wesson made a motion, and Gerelene Blevins seconded, to open the public hearing. All
were in favor.

STAFF COMMENT/RECOMMENDATIONS: Town Planner Elinor Hiltz stated that
the protest petition section of the Sawmills Code of Ordinances conflicts with the State
Statutes. The proposed new text is the State Statute, almost verbatim:

(A) A protest petition may be filed to contest a rezoning or zoning ordinance amendment.
In case of a qualified protest against a zoning map amendment, that amendment shall not
become effective except by favorable vote of three-fourths (3/4) of all members of the city
council. For the purposes of this subsection, vacant positions on the council and members
who are excused from voting shall not be considered “members of the council” for
calculation of the requisite supermajority. No protest petition shall be valid unless it be in
the form of a written petition actually bearing the signatures of the requisite number of
property owners and stating that the signers do protest the proposed change or amendment,
and unless it shall have been received by the town clerk in sufficient time to allow the town
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at least two (2) normal work days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, before
the date established for a public hearing on the proposed change or amendment to determine
the sufficiency and accuracy of the petition. A person who has signed a protest petition may
withdraw his or her name from the petition at any time prior to the vote on the proposed
zoning amendment, Only those protest petitions that meet the qualifying standards at the
time of the vote on the zoning amendment shall trigger the supermajority voting
requirement.

(B) To qualify as a valid protest petition, the petition must be signed by the owners of either
(i) twenty percent (20%) or more of the area included in the proposed change or (ii) five
percent (5%) of a 100-foot-wide buffer extending along the entire boundary of each discrete
or separate area proposed to be rezoned. A street right-of-way shall not be considered in
computing the 100-foot buffer area as long as the street right-of-way is 100 feet wide or
less. When less than an entire parcel of land is subject to the proposed zoning map
amendment, the 100-foot buffer shall be measured from the property line of that parcel. In
the absence of evidence to the contrary, the city may rely on the county tax listing to
determine the “owners” of potentially qualifying areas.

(C) The foregoing provisions concerning protests shall not be applicable to any amendment
which initially zones property added to the territorial coverage of the ordinance as a result of
annexation or otherwise, or to an amendment to an adopted (i) special use district, (if)
conditional use district, or (iii) conditional district if the amendment does not change the
types of uses that are permitted within the district or increase the approved density for
residential development, or increase the total approved size of nonresidential development,
or reduce the size of amy buffers or screening approved for the special use district,
conditional use district, or conditional district.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked if anyone wished to
speak on the proposed protest petition text amendment.

No one wished to speak.

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked for a motion to
close the public hearing.

Joe Wesson made a motion, Johnny Wilson seconded, to close the public hearing. All were
in favor.

COUNCIL ACTION: Joe Wesson made a motion, and Jeff Wilson seconded, to adopt the
proposed protest fext amendment changing the protest petition section of the zoning
ordinance so that it protects property owner rights, but also allows a rezoning to pass if the
rezoning is for the greater good. This section is being changed to adhere to State law. This
text amendment change is consistent with the Sawmills Comprehensive Plan. All were in
favor.
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DISCUSSION:

MAYTFIELD DRIVE SPEED HUMP: Town Administrator Seth Eckard stated that he had
talked with Todd Poteet, from West Consultants, and Ronnie Coffey, Public Works
Director, regarding the speed hump request. Ms. Teresa Berry, the applicant, had met all
requirements for a speed hump on Mayfield Drive with the exception of the following:

Item 5: The minimum street length of 1,200 feet is not met. The street is only 960 feet long.
Item 6: It doesn’t appear this street will meet the traffic volume of 400 vehicles per day.

The enclosed map shows the suggested location of the speed hump recommended by West
Consultants.

Jeff Wilson made a motion, and Gerelene Blevins seconded, to install a speed hump on
Mayfield Drive at the location recommended by West Consultants. All were in favor.

FINANCIAL MATTERS:

CAPITAL: RESERVE FUND BUDGET AMENDMENT: Town Administrator Seth
Eckard stated that the enclosed Budget Ordinance Amendment is to transfer funds into the
Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund in the amount of two hundred forty-five
thousand dollars ($245,000) for future capital outlay and/or projects.

Joe Wesson made a motion, and Johnny Wilson seconded, to transfer two hundred forty-five
thousand dollars ($245,000) into the Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for future
capital outlay and/or projects. All were in favor.

REQUEST FOR A DONATION FROM CALDWELL COUNTY CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE: Town Administrator stated that the Caldwell County Chamber of
Commerce has requested a donation in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) from
each Town in Caldwell County to help pay for a billboard honoring Madison Bumgarner.

Gerelene Bleving made a motion, and Johnny Wilson seconded, to give a donation in the
amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) to the Caldwell County Chamber of Commerce
for a billboard honoring Madison Bumgarner. All were in favor.

PLANNING MATTERS:
NEW ZONING APPROVAL PROCEDURES: Town Planner Elinor Hiltz stated that
after returning from a statewide planning conference, there is one (1) additional step

the Town needs to complete in rezoning and text amendments. In addition to making a
*“consistency statement”, Council should also adopt a “statement of reasonableness™.

There are now two (2) requested actions for future rezoning and text amendments.
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s Adopt a statement about the amendment harming or not harming the public
good. The statement has to be unique to each case. The statement will need
to be adopted.

s Rezone or amend the Ordinance and in the motion state that the action wilt
be “consistent (or inconsistent) with the Comprehensive Plan.

No Council action was reguired.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked if anyone had any
questions or comments at this time.

Chaplin Jason Hines, with the Sawmills Volunteer Fire Department, stated that he thought it
was a good idea for the Town to donate to the Caldwell County Chamber of Commerce for
a billboard honoring Madison Bumgarner. The children at South Caldwell High School
wore orange and white to cheer on Madison Bumgarner.

UPDATES:

CODE ENFORCEMENT MONTHLY REPORT: Administrator Seth Eckard stated
Town Planner Elinor Hiltz has enclosed an updated status report of Code Enforcement cases
and the progress that has been made on each case as of October 2014.

No Council action was required.

ADMINISTRATORS REPORT: Town Administrator Seth Eckard made the following
announcements:

e Tuesday October 28, 2014, is the last Farmers’ Market of the season. There
will be pony rides, pumpkin painting and trick or treating for the children.
There will also be a corn-hole tournament.

¢ The Town is now taking applications for Public Utilities Worker I. The job
is posted in the office, in the Lenoir News-Topic, on the Town’s Website, on
the Town’s Facebook page and NC Works.

e The Town’s first household hazardous waste day will be held Saturday,
November 22, 2014 from 8:00 am to 12:00 pm at the S.T.A.T, Inc., facility
located at Eli Ln. This event is for town residents only. To enter S.T.A.T.
Inc. facility during collection day, the resident will need to either pick up a
ted door hanger from Town Hall or present a current, or past, Town of
Sawmills utility/sanitation bill at the drop off site during collection day.
Town Administrator Seth Eckard and Assistant Public Works Director Steve
Coonse will be at the door to verify the resident with one of the above
options. There is a budget and S, T.A.T. knows what our budget is and will
tell us when that budget is met, so come early.
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» There will be a pre-construction meeting on November 18, 2014 at 10:00 am
for the Duff Drive sewer project. The bid opening for the Duff Drive sewer
project will be December 4, 2014 at 2:00 pm. The week after the bid
opening there will be a public works committee meeting with Johnny Wilson
and Jeff Wilson to go over the bids and discuss how the Duff Drive sewer
project fits in the budget with the other projects that are going on. Then at
the December Council meeting, there will be bids for Council to consider.
At the first of the year, we can get construction started on the Duff Drive
sewer project.

¢ Veteran’s Day celebration will be Saturday, November 8, 2014 at 10:30 am
at Veterans Memorial Park. Joe Wesson is hosting this event.

e The Sawmills Christmas Parade will be Saturday December 6, 2014
beginning at 10:00 am.

* The employee Christmas party will be at Sims Barbeque this year on Friday
December 12, 2014 beginning at 6:30 pn.

¢ The Sawmills Annual Christmas Tree Lighting will be held on Tuesday
December 2, 2014 beginning at 7:00 pm at the Farmers Market Field.
Gerelene Blevins will be hosting this event.

» The bathrooms at Veterans Memorial Park are in. Steve Williams poured the
concrete around it. There will be landscaping work done this week. The
restrooms are not in working order yet. Duke Power is coming Friday
October 24, 2014 to hook up the electricity. The City of Lenoir is waiting on
a special piece of equipment in order to tap the 20-inch mainline for the
restrooms to have water. Public Works has worked really hard to get the
bathrooms ready and to make them ook good.

s The walking trail at Baird Park has been resurfaced and looks really good.
Our other resurfacing project, Moore Acres Drive, will be started in about
three (3) weeks.

COUNCIL COMMENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked if anyone on the
Council had any questions or comments at this time.

Joe Wesson wanted to thank everyone for coming to the meeting and listening to what
Council had to say.

Jeff Wilson wanted to remind everyone to come out to Veterans Memorial Park on
November 8, 2014 for the Veterans Celebration and be fed.

Trena McRary Kirby wanted to remind everyone to come out to the last Farmers Market
next Tuesday, October 28, 2014,

Johnny Wilson wanted to let Holly M Annas how much that Sawmills appreciates her and
all her accomplishments.
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COUNCIL ADJOURN: Mayor Pro-Tem Trena McRary Kirby asked for a motion to
adjourn.

Jeff Wilson made a motion, and Johnny Wilson seconded, to adjourn the meeting. All were
in favor.,

Julie A Good, Town Clerk Trena McRary Kirby,
Mayor Pro-Tem




AGENDA ITEM 7A

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Recognition:
Recycle Rewards
Program
Discussion:

The Town of Sawmills would like to congratulate Ms. Esther Stamey on winning the Recycle
Rewards Program for the month of November. Town Administrator Seth Eckard will present
Ms. Stamey with a Certificate of Appreciation. A twenty-eight dollar ($28.00) credit will be
added to the current sanitation bill.

Recommendation:

No Council action is required.




AGENDA ITEM 7B

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Recognition:
: Yard of the Month
Winners
Discussion:

Cameron, Callie and Jacqueline, from the 28630 zip code, and Jack and Rita Livingston, from
the 28638 zip code, are the Yard of the Month winners for November. Town Administrator Seth
Eckard will present them with a Certificate of Appreciation.

Recommendation:

No Council action required.




AGENDA ITEM 7C

MEMO

DATE: November 18, 2014

SUBJECT: Recognition;
Colton Hartley

Discussion:

The Town of Sawmills would like to congratulate Colton Hartley for his outstanding heroism in
the rescue of a child from an animal near his home on Wildwood Street. Colton is the son of
Marcus and Shelly Hartley of 2871 Wildwood Street.

Recommendation:

No Council action is required.




AGENDA ITEM 8A

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Financial Matters:
Capital Reserve Fund
Budget Amendment
Correction
Discussion;

During the October 21, 2014 meeting, a budget ordinance was approved to transfer funds from
the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund in the amount of $245,000 (two hundred forty-five
thousand dollars).

The amendment should have listed the balance sheet account numbers to reflect a fund balance
appropriation to the revenue and expense accounts, However, the amendment listed the journal
account numbers in error. The attached amendment lists the correct account numbers for the
transfer of these funds.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends Council approve a budget amendment correction in the amount of $245,000
(two hundred forty-five thousand dollars).




TOWN OF SAWMILLS
BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT CORRECTION

Be it Ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Sawmills, Caldwell County, North
Carolina, that the following Amendment to the Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2014 —2015 be
hereby adopted.

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the following Amendment for the fiscal year be made to
the budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Description Account
General Fund Balance Appropriation Revenue 1-00-3990 $245,000
Transfer to Capital Projects Expense 1-00-4493 $245,000

Explanation: A fund balance appropriation will need to be made for the transfer of funds from
the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Funds for future projecits.

This Amendment now Adopted this the day of November, 2014.
Approved:
Mayor, Town of Sawmills Finance Officer, Town of Sawmills
ATTEST: APPROVED TO FORM:
Town Clerk Town Atforney

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government budget and
Fiscal Control Act.

204039-1



AGENDA ITEM 8B

MEMO

DATE: November 18, 2014

SUBJECT: Financial Matters:
Employee Longevity Pay

Discussion:

As you are aware, the Town of Sawmills has an employee longevity pay plan that is paid out
during the first pay period in December.

The pay schedule is as follows:

26 years and up $900.00
21-25 years $750.00
16-20 years $600.00
10-15 years $450,00
6-9 years $300.00
2-5 years $150.00
7 months-1 year $50.00
0 months-6 months $0.00

There are sufficient funds in the budget to cover this expenditure.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends Council approve the issuance of longevity paychecks to Town employees paid
out the first pay period in December.




AGENDA ITEM 8C

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Financial Matters:
FY 2013-2014
Audit Presentation
Discussion:

Enclosed with your agenda packet is a copy of the FY 2013-2014 audit.

The aunditors for the Town, James Lowdermilk and Rick Hammer with Lowdermilk, Church &
Co., L.L.P., will be on hand to formally present the audit to you.

Recommendation:
No council action required.




Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N. Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

To the Mayor and Members of Town Council of
Town of Sawmills
Sawmills, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sawmills for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133), as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our engagement letter to you dated November 23, 2014. Professional standards also require that
we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Town of Sawmills are described in Note I to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended
June 30, 2014. We noted no transactions entered into by the Town of Sawmills during the year for which there is
a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial

statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimate affecting the Town of Sawmills’ financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the depreciation lives is based on estimated useful lives used by similar
governments, We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation lives in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.




Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearty trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatement. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole,

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated Qctober 3, 2014,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting prineiple to the Town of Sawmills” financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such

consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Town of Sawmills’ auditors, However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition

to our retention.

Other Matiers

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is required
supplementary information (RST) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

We were engaged to report on individual fund and other schedules, which accompany the financial statements but
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,



Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor and members of the Town Council and management
of the Town of Sawmills and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified

parties.
Very truly yours,

el e+

Morganton, North Carolina
October 3,2014
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Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N. Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the Town Council
Sawmills, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, , each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sawmills, North
Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from maferial misstaterent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal conirol relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and approprlate to prowde a ba31s for our audit
op1n10ns . : o ‘

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Sawmills, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the Gereral Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted i the
United States of America,

Other Matters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 12 and pages 39 through 45 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an'appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards gederalty accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the fimited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opm1on or pr0v1de any assurance, ' :

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coliectively
comprise the Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The individual fund financial
statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a requlred part of the basic financial statements

The individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and othier schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accotinting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information-directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the individual fund
financial statements and other schedules are fairly stited in all materia! respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whols.




Other Reporting Required by Government Aunditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 3, 2014, on
our consideration of the Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and on our

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financiai
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal controf over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with - -
Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.

.Mwm.

Morganton, North Carolina
October 3, 2014




Management's Discussion and Analysis

As the management of the Town of Sawmills, we offer readers of the Town’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014, We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with addmonal information that we have

furnished in the Town s financial statements, whlch follow this nanatwe

Financial nghllghts

»  The Town of Sawmills’ assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $14 769 685 (net

position).
» The government's total net position increased by $368,423.
s Asof the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Sawmills' governmental funds reported ending fund

balance of $4,381,356, an increase of $185,361 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 86 percent
of this total amount, or $3,778,902, is available for spending at the government's discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $3,778,902, or 217
percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Sawmills' basic financial
statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic
financial statements present two different views of the Town through the use of government-wide statements and
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Sawmills.




Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Govermment-wide Fund | Notes to the
Financial Financial - Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary , > Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town's financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 10) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the Town government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements; 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements,

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the Town of Sawmills individual funds. Budgetary information required by the General
Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.




Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
Town's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business, The government-wide
statements provide short and long-term information about the Town of Sawmills' financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the Town's net position and how they have changed. Net position is
the difference between the Town's total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources. Measuring net posmon is one way to gauge the Town's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are dwided into two categories: 1) govemmental activities; and 2) business-type
activities, The governmental activities include most of the Town’s basic services such as planning and
community development, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes, state sales tax, and
state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the Town
charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer services. The government-wide financial
statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements (see Fi igure 2) provide a more detailed look at the Town of Sawmills’ most
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maiatain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Sawmills, like all other governmental
entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town's budget ordinance. All of the funds
of the Town of Sawmills can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. -Most of the Town's basic seryices are accounted for in
govenunental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending
focus. As aresult, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that
helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the Town programs.
The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The Town of Sawmills adopts an annual budget for i_ts_GenefaI Tund, as required by-the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town, the management of
the Town, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the Town of Sawmills to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period
activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town complied
with the budget ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the
budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budgst as amended by the board;
3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference
or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference between
the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the
reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.




Proprietary Funds - The Town of Sawmills has the following type of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statemnents. The Town of Sawmills uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity. These funds
are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities.

Interdependence with Other Entities - The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or associated
with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this dependency, the Town is
subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to Federal and State
laws and Federal and State appropriations. It is also subject to changes in investment earnings and asset values
associated with U.S. Treasure Securities because of actions by foreign government and other holders of publicly
held U.S. Treasury Securities,

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the
financial statements follow Exhibit 10 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Town of Sawmills’ Net Pogition

Figure 2
Governmental Business-type
Achivities Activities ' Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Agsets:
Current and other assets $4,501,945 $4,340,944 $3,744,316 $3,761,303 § 2246262 $ 8,102,248
Capital assets 2,585,046 2,412 957 4.158.826 4.105.568 6,743,871 6,518,524
Total assets $7.086,991 $6,753.901 §7.903,142 $7.866,871 $14.990.133 $14.620,772
Liabilities:
Long term liabilities outstanding § 26,062 $ 30,372 $ 99,545 $ 105,244 $ 125607 5 135616
Other liabilities 5,928 11,927 88.913 71.967 94 841 83,894
Total liabilities $ 31,990 § 42209 $ 188458 § 177,211 3 220448 § 2193510
Net position;
Net investment in capital assets $2,585,046 $2,412.957 54,064,735 $4,005,596 $ 6,649,781 $ 6,418,353
Restricted 512,454 557,404 - - 512,454 557,404
Unrestricted 3,957,501 3.741.241 3,649,949 3,684,064 7,607,450 7.425.3035
Total net position $7.055.001 $6.711.602 §7.714 684 $7.689.660 $14,769.685 $14.401.262

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition.
The assets of the Town of Sawmills exceeded liabilities by $14,769,685 as of June 30, 2014. The Town's net
position increased by $368,423 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, The largest portion of net position (45%)
reflects the Town's investment in capital assets (e.g, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related
debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The Town of Sawmills uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to
repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. ‘An additional portion of the Town's net position (3%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $7,607,450 is unrestricted.




Town of Sawmills
Changes in Net Position

_ Figure 3
Governmental Business-fype )
Activitiey Activities Total
Revenues: ' 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 - 23
Program revenues: o
Charges for services $ 189,044 3 194,730 $ 703,961 $ 598,414 3 883,005 § 893,144
Operating grants and contributions 151,374 166,739 _ - : - 151,374 166,739
Capital grants and contributions - - 15,367 T 19,367 -
General revenues: ' ) - '
Property taxes © 500,898 457,609 - - " 500,898 457,609
Other taxes i - 890,480 . 864,710 - : “ 890,480 864,710
Grants and contributions not . .
restricted to specific programs 162,659 157,335 - - 162,659 157,335
Other 12,782 11,226 12,681 3,693 25,463 14.922
Total revenues 1,907,237 1,852,352 736,009 702,107 2,643,246 2,554,459
Expenses; : . : : :
General government 677,632 801,408 : - - 677,632 801,408
Transportation 294,189 359,609 - - 204189 359,606
Environmental protection 286,997 270,103 - - 286,997 270,103
Economic development 53,148 20,143 - - 53,148 20,143
Culture and recreation 251,872 284,512 - - 251,872 284,512
‘Water and sewer ) - - 710,985 581,682 710,885 581682
Total expenses 1.563.838 - 1.735773 710,985 581,682 2,274,823 2317437
Increase in net positien 343,399 116,577 25,024 120,426 368,423 237,003
Net position - July | ) 6,711,602 6,595,025 7.689.660 7,569,234 14,401,262 14,164,255
Net position - June 30 $7.055.001 $6.711,602 87,714,684 $7,689,660 $14.769 685 514,401,262

Governmental Activities - Governmental activities increased the Town of Sawmills' net position by $343,399.
Key elements of this increase are as follows:

*  Public Works employee resigned and the position was not filled during the fiscal year.
+  The Town ended the year 10% under budget on expenditures.
«  Slight increase in property tax revenue.

Business-type Activities - Business-type activities increased the Town of Sawmills’ net position by $25,024.

Financial Analysis of the Town of Sawmills’ Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Sawmills uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources, Such information is useful in assessing the Town of
Sawmills' financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Sawmills. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $3,778,902, while total fund balance reached $4,291,356, Asa
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 217 percent of total General Fund

expenditures.




At June 30, 2014, the governmental funds of the Town reported a fund balance of $4,381,356, a 4 percent
increase from last year,

Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the Town of Sawmills revised the budget on one occasion.
Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that
are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increasesin
appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

» The budget was amended on August 20, 2013, in the amount of $70,000, to cover the remammg construction

costs for the Public Works storage building from Fiscal Year2012-2013-

*  The budget was amended on October 15, 2013 transferring the amount of $60,000 from the Capltal Reserve
Fund to the General Fund for the purchase of a refuse truck.

* The budget was amended on January 2, 2014, in the amount of $14,000, for a donation to Sawmills

Elémentary School.

Proprietary Funds - The Town of Sawmills' proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide statements but in more detail, Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the
end of the fiscal year amounted to $3,684,064. The total growth in net position for Water and Sewer Fund was
$120,426. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the
Town of Sawmills' business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Town of Sawmills' investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2014, totals $6,743,872 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following items;

*  Purchase of a new refuse truck
* Resurfacing of Woodland Drive
*  Baird park concession stand improvements

Town of Sawmills® Capital Assets

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
: 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 225,239 $ 225239 $ 5,436 b 5,436 § 230,675 § 230,675
Buildings 493,715 433,873 - - 493,715 433,873
[mprovements (other than buildings) 271,065 144,487 - - 271,065 144,487
Machinery and equipment 166,338 166,338 179,758 179,758 346,096 346,096
Vehicles 997,790 758,990 100,169 47,133 1,097,959 806,123
Water distribution system - - 2,555,253 2,423,431 2,555,253 2,423,431
Sewer lines - - 3,212,973 3,212,973 3,212,973 3,212,973
Parks 2,426,881 2,426,881 - - 2,426,881 2,426,881
Office squipment 38925 38925 - - 38925 38925
Total 4,619,952 4,194,732 6,053,589 5,868,731 10,673,541 10,063,463
Accumulated depreciation (2.034,905) {1.781.775) (1,894,763) (1,763,164) {3,920 668} (3,544,939
Capital assets, net $2.585.046 82412957 b $4,158.826 $4.105,568. $6743872 $46,518,524

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in note II of this report.




Long-term Debt - As of June 30, 2014, the Town of Sawmills had no bonded debt outstﬁndmg The Town’s
debt of §94,090 represents a loan for water line construction. The Town’s total debt decreased by $5,881 during

the past year due fo payments

North Carolina general ‘statutes limit the amount of general ébligéf_ibn debt that a unit of govemment caﬂ'ié_'s'ue to
8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the Town of Sawmills is $17,064,518. The Town of Sawmills has no bonds authonzed but un-

issued as of June 30, 2014,

Additional information regarding the Town of Sawfgill's" lonig-term debt can be found in note T1 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates - |

The following key economic indicators affect operations of the Town of Sawmills.

High Unemployment. Caldwell County’s overall unemployment rate is above the State average. -Caldwell
County is currently deszgnated a Tier One County by the State of North Carolina for the purpose of economic’

assistance funds
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

The Town of Sawmills’ overall budget for FY 2014-2015 totals $3,092,391.
The proposed budget includes:

*  no tax increases;

« minor increases of the water and sewer rates; -

» an allocation to the Capital Reserve Fund

« establishment of a sewer availability fee and right of way encroachment fee;

*  no appropriation of General Fund unassigned reserves will be made for the fiscal year;

* maintainsg current levels of service;
»  maintains current levels of benefits for employees

Below is a brief budgetary summary of the various funds for the Town:

General Fund;

The proposed ad valorem tax rate for FY 2014-2015 is to remain at 20 cents per $100 valuation with a collection
rate of 90.90%, Each penny of the Town’s property tax rate generates approximately $20,767.00.

The General Fund currently remains debt free. The Town of Sawmills attempts to pay for capital outlay items
from actual revenue sources and/or reserves rather than issuing bonds or borrowing funds and paying interest on
debt. As has been the case in the previous three budgets, the Town will not need an appropriation of General

Fund unrestricted reserves in order to balance the budget.

Anticipated State collected local revenues have been calculated utilizing data supplied by the North Carolina '
League of Municipalities and local economic data. The Town is anticipating extremely small increases in most
of these revenue sources as a result of the slowly improving local, state and national economies.
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Some highlights in the General Fund departmental budgets include:

+  donation of $14,000 to match a North Carolina Department of Public Instruction grant to fund a full time
school resource officer at Sawmills Elementary School,; :

« creation of a Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day Event;

« transition to an improved curbside recycling service;

«  creation of a fireworks display to be held during Memorial Day 2015;

= construction of additional restroom facilities at Sawmills Veterans Memorial Park;

* major repairs to the Sawmills Municipal Park walking trail;

+  employee salary adjustments and merit pay increases of up to 3%;

+ allocation of anticipated excess revenues from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund,;

* addition of new street lights;

« installation of new automated slide gate to improve security and operational efficiency at the Public Works
facility;

« significant investment in the repair and maintenance of critical road infrastructure;

+ continued participation in the Caldwell County Sales Tax Reinvestment Program in the amount of $280,000,

General fund revenues and expenditures are balanced at $2,003,400. This amount represents a decrease of
$59,225, or a decrease of 2.9%, from the previous amended 2013-2014 Fiscal Year Budget.

Enterprise Fund:

The results of a system-wide water and sewer capital improvement plan study were presented to the Town
Council in fiscal year 2013-2014, It is the obligation of the Town to make necessary system repairs, upgrades
and improvements not only to meet State and Federal quality control standards, but fo ensure that the service
provided is performed at the highest quality possible.

In lght of the continued increase in cost of water and sewer purchases from the City of Lenoir, because of the
need to build Enterprise Fund reserves to address anticipated system improvements, and to maintain solvency and
. meet unanticipated emergency needs, both Staff and the Council are urged to continue adequate financial
planning for the future. This requires adjusting water and sewer rates in the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year’s Budget.

The Enterprise Fund, specifically the Water Distribution System Department, reflects a $280,000 line item
expense in Repair and Maintenance, This expense reflects an anticipated cost to perform needed waterline
replacement on Bakers Circle. The Water Department also anticipates replacing our current posteard billing
system with an envelope billing system. This change is required by the United States Post Office.

The Town has been awarded a $750,000 Sewer Infrastructure Community Development Block Grant by the
North Carolina Department of Commerce. The Duff Drive Sewer Expansion Project will provide sewer access to
sixty-six low-to-moderate income households in Sawmills. The grant will also cover the cost of taps and
connections to each home in the project area.

Projected revenues for the Enterprise Fund for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 are approximately 32% higher than Fiscal
Year 2013-2014. This projected revenue increase accounts for the need to appropriate $261,017 of Enterprise
Fund net assets to balance this year’s water and sewer budget for one time capital expenses.
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New Water and Sewer Rates for Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Water Rates.
Water Base Rate: §15.00
Water Volumetric Rate: $4.50 per 1,000 gallons after the first 2,000 gallons

Sewer Rates:
Sewer Base Rate: $18.00
Sewer Volumetric Rate: $5.00 per 1,000 gallons after the ﬁrst 2,000 gallons

Conclusion:

It is with great pride, and a-lot of hard work, that we present the proposed budget for FY 2014-2015. The total
budget estimates for FY 2014-2015 (across all funds) totals $3,092,391 versus $2,829,936 for FY 2013-2014.
Staff did a great job in reahzmg the Town’s monetary parameters and makmg adjustments accordingly. General
Fund balance percentage is anticipated to improve this year,

I would like to thank the dedicated employees of the Town for their hard work and good stewardship of the
Town’s resources. These people work hard and take pride in carrying out their duties. I would like to thank the
Mayor and Council for their dedication in carrying out their responsibilities i in providing leadership and gu1dance
in these times of economic uncertainty.

Requests for Information -

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town of Sawmills' finances for those with an intsrest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information
should be directed to the following:

Town Administrator
Town. of Sawmills
Highway 321-A
Sawmills, N.C, 28630
(828) 356-7903
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 1
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014
Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities Total
Assets ’
Current assets: ,
Cash and cash equivalents $§ 3,874,830 $ 3,492,157 § 7,366,987
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 284,937 67,324 352,261
Taxes receivable, net 114,661 - 114,661
Accounts receivable, water (net) - 69,995 69,995
Accounts receivable, other (net) 26,125 - 26,125
Duye from other governmental agencies 201,392 24,935 226,327
Inventories ' - 89,906 89,906
Total current assets 4,501,945 3,744,316 8,246,262
Capital assets:

- Land, non-depreciable assets and construction in progress 225,239 5,436 230,675
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 2,359,807 4,153,389 6,513,166
Total capital assets 2,585,046 4,158,826 5,743,871
Total assets § 7,086,991 $ 7.903,142 $14,990,133
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 5,928 $ 21,589 $ 27,517
Utility deposits - 67,324 67,324
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year - 5,881 5.881
Due in more than one year 26,062 93,664 119,726
Total Iiabilities 31,990 188,458 220,448
Net Position _

Net investment in capital assets 2,585,046 4,064,735 6,649,781
Restricted for stabilization by state statute 227,517 - 227,517
Restricted for streets ‘ 284,937 - 284,937
Unrestricted . 3,957,501 3,649,049 7,607,450
Total net position $  7.055,001 $ 7.714,684  $14,769,685

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds -
June 30, 2014
: Non-Major
Major Fund Fund
Total

General  Capital Project Governmental
Assets Fund . Fund Funds
Cash and cash equivalents ‘ $ 3,784,830 $ 90,000 $ 3,874,830
Restricted cash 284,937 - 284,937
Taxes receivable, net 114,661 - 114,661
Accounts receivable, other 26,125 - 26,125
Due from other governmental agencies 201,392 - 201,392
Total assets $ 4411945 § 90,000 § 4,501,943
Liabilities. Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5928 § - § 5,928
Total liabilities 5,928 - 5,928
Deferred inflows of rescurces:
Property taxes receivable 114,661 - 114,661
Total deferred inflows of resources 114,661 - 114,661
Fund balances:
Restricted:

Stabilization by state statute 227,517 - 227,517

Streets o 284,937 - 284,937
Assigned: '

Environmental protection - 90,000 90,000
Unassigned 3,778,902 - 3,778,902
Total fund balances | 4,291,356 90,000 4,381,356
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances § 4,411,945 § 90,000 § 4,501,945

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
' Exhibit 4
Reconciliation of the Goﬁernment&l Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30,2014

Total governmental fund balances $4,381,356

Amounts reported for go’ve}nmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reparted
in the funds. 2,385,046

Long-term liabilities and compensated absences are not due and payable in the

current period and, therefore are not reported in the funds (26,062)

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred infiows of resources in fund statements 114,661

Net position of governmental activities ' $7.05‘:5.'001_'

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

16




TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Non-Major
Major Fund Fund
Total
General Capital Project  Governmental
Fund Fund Funds

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes $ 519,261 $ - % 516,261
Local option sales taxes 890,480 - 890,480
Unrestricted intergoveramental revenues 162,659 - 162,659
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 151,374 - 151,374
Permits and fees 910 - 910
Seles and services 187,934 - 187,934
Investment earnings 3,593 - 3,593
Miscellaneous 9,388 - 9,388
Total revenues 1,925,598 - 1,925,598
Expenditures:

Current:

General government 678,517 692,517
Transportation 454,508 - 454,508
Environmental protection 454,172 - 454,172
Cultural and recreational 99,892 - 99,892
Economic and physical development 53,148 - 39,148
Total expenditures 1,740,237 1,740,237
Revenues over (under) expenditures 185,361 185,361
Operating transfers - in 60,000 - 60,000
Operating transfers - out - (60,000} (60,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 60,000 {60,000) -
Net change in fund balances 245,361 (60,000) 185,361
Fund balances, beginning of year 4,045,995 150,000 4,195,995
Fund balances, end of year $ 4,291,356 § 90,000 §  4,381.356

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA"

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the
| . Statement of Activities =

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit 6

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because: '

Net changés in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditurss. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds,

Change in deferred revenue fortax revenues

- Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Compensated absences

Total changes in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

18

$ 185,361

172,089

(18,361)

4310

$ 343,399




TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 7

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30,2014

Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues: : ,
Ad valorem taxes $ 399,300  $399,300 § 519,261 § 119,961
Local option sales taxes 856,000 856,000 890,480 34,480
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 126,000 126,000 162,659 36,659
Restricted intergovernmenta! revenues 148,000 148,000 151,374 3,374
Permits and fees 500 500 910 410
Sales and services 164,000 194,000 187,934 (6,066)
Investment earnings 4,000 4,000 3,593 (407)
Miscellaneous 5,100 5,100 9,388 4,288
Total revenues 1,732,900 1,732,800 1,925,598 192,699
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 771,950 771,950 678,517 63,433
Transportation 533,375 603,375 454,508 148,867
Environmental protection 443,100 503,100 454,172 48,928
Cultural and recreational 185,450 185,450 99,892 85,558
Economic and physical development 44,750 58,750 53,148 5,602
Total expenditures 1,978,625 2,122,625 1,740,237 382,388
Revenues over (under) expenditures (245,725) (389,725) 185,361 575,087
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated fund balance 245,725 328,725 - (329,725)
Operating transfers - in (out) - 60,000 60,000 -
Total other financing sources {(uses) 245,725 389,725 60,000 (329,725)
Net change in fund balances $ - $ - 245,361 $ 245,361
Fund balances, beginning of year 4,045,995
Fund balances, end of year $ 4,291,356

The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 8
Statement of Net Position -
Proprietary Fund
Jusie 30,2014
Enterprise Fund
. Water and
Sewer Fund
Assets :
Current assets: _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,492,157
Accounts receivable - water, net 69,995
(rants receivable 24,935
Restricted cash and cash equivalents : 67,324
Inventories ' - §9,906
Total current assets 3,744,317
Capital assets: .
5,436

Land and other non-depreciable assets
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 4,153,389

Capital assets (net) 4,158,825

Total assets ' § 17,903,142
- Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities: :

Accourits payable and accrued liabilities _ $ 21,589

Current portion of long-term obligations 5,881

Liabilities payable out of retricted assets:

Utility deposits 67,324
Total current liabilities 94,794
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable 5,455
General obligation notes payable - noncurrent 88,209
Total noncurrent [iabilitics 93,664
Total liabilities 188,458
Net position;
Net investment in capital assets 4,064,735
Unrestricted . 3,649,049
$ 7,714,684

Total net position

The noies to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Enterprise Fund

Water and

Sewer Fund
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 5 681,033
Taps and connections 2,000
Other operating revenues 20,928
Total operating revenues 703,961
Operating Expenses: :
Water distribution 445,018
Sewer collection 134,568
Depreciation 131,599
Total operating expenses 710,985
Operating income (loss) {7,023)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): ‘
Interest on investments 2,943
Other - 9,738
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 12,681
Change in net position before contributions 5,657
Capital contributions 19,367
Changes in net position 25,024
Net position - beginning of year 7,689,660
Net position - end of year $ 7.714.684

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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" TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Exhibit 10
: Page 1 of 2
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Enterprise Fund
Water and
Sewer
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers $ 713,471
Cash paid for goods and services (505,249)
Cash paid to employees for services o (79,690 -
Customer deposits received a7y
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 128,361
Cash Flows From Capital Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (184,857)
Principal paid on general obligation notes payable . (5,881)
Capitgl- contributions 19,367
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (17L,371)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments 2,943
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ {40,067)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 3,599,548 -
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 3,539,481
cont.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
Exhibit 10, cont.
Page2 of 2

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Enterprise Fund

Water and

Sewer

Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) ' $ (7,023)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 131,599
Other income 9,737
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables | (25,163)
Increase (decrease) in inventory 2,083
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,117
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits (171)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 182
Total adjustments 135,384
Net cash provided (used) by éperating activities $ 128,361

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
¥or the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Sawmills conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Sawmills is a municipal corporation which is governed by an elected mayor and a five
member council.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by
fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expense and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues. '

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and
reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies result
from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating revenues are ancillary activities such as
investment earnings.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CARCLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The
primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and State-shared revenues. The primary
expenditures are for street maintenance and construction, and sanitation services, and general
governmental services.

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the Town’s water and sewer operations.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carohna General Statutes all funds of the Town are mamtamed during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting,
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time labilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized
in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, and donations is recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Intemally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Town’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town
also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2614

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have matured, General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources. '

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except
for property taxes, Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is
not susceptible to accrual, At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the
current year. Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and
collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this
change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property
taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property
taxes are due when the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in
which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period prior to September 1,
2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and
are offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilitizes franchise tax, collected and
held by the State at vear-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental
revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as
unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.
Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position
available to finance the program. It is the Town’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

Budgetary Data

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual
budget is adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at
the fiscal-year end. Project ordinances are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The enterprise
fund projects are consolidated with their respective operating fund for reporting purposes. All
budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level
for the multi-year funds. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary,
the effects of which were not material. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal
year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual
ordinance can be adopted.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Résourcesiand Fund Equity

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as
required by State law [G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or
savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may establish
time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and
certificates of deposit. :

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States, obligations of the
State of North Carolina, bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority,
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies, certain high quality issues of commercial
paper and bankers' acceptances, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (INCCMT). The
Town’s investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities
of the NCCMT - Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair
value, which is the NCCMT"s share price. The NCCMT-Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair

value, . :

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Town considers all highly liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash
equivalents. .

Restricted Cash

Powell Bill funds are classified as restricted cash because they can be expended only for the purposes
of maintaining, repairing, constructing, reconstructing or widening of local streets per G.S. 136-41.1
through 164-41 4,

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due cn
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes
are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2013, As allowed by State law, the Town has
established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes which are paid prior to the due date. In the
Town's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that was
written off in prior years.

Inventory and Prepaid Items

The inventories of the Town are maintained for all enterprise fund (Water and Sewer Fund) supplies.
They are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The cost of these inventories is
expensed when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are

used.
Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a
certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Minimum capitalization costs are
$5,000. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost ar estimated historical cost.
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General
infrastructure assets acquired after July 1, 2003, consist of the road network and water and sewer
system assets and are reported at cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreclated on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives to the cost of the
assets:

Years
General governmental infrastructure - roads 45
Water and sewer mfrastructure 30-45
Buildings 45
Furniture and office equipment 7
Equipment and vehicles 5-7
- Computers/software 3

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Town has no items that meet this criterion.
Tn addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as revenue until then. The Town has one item that meets the criterion for this category -

property taxes receivable.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type staternent of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums of discounts. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiurms and discounts, as

- well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuances costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures,

The Town’s long-term debt for water and sewer system improvements is carried within the Enterprise
Fund. The debt service requirements for that debt are being met by service revenues, but the taxing
power of the Town is pledged to make these payments if water and sewer revenues shoulid ever be
insufficient. : :

Compensaﬁed Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town’s government-wide and
proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related
payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first out method of
using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next
fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements,

The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave, Sick lsave
does ot vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town does not have any
obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been
made.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net
investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute,

Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of ending inventorics, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)].

Restricted for Streets - Powell Bill portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for
street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of the
total unexpended Powell Bill funds.

Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposed by majority vote by quorum of Town of Sawmills’ governing body (highest level of decision-
making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the
governing body,

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that Town of Sawmills intends to use for specific
purposes.

Subsequent Year’s Expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year’s
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves the
appropriation; however the budget ordinance authorizes the manager to modify the
appropriations by resource or appropriation within funds up to $100,000.

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Fin'ancial Statements
Faor the Year Ended June 30,2014

F.

The Town of Sawmills has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-city funds, ¢ity funds. For purposes of fund balance
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Town.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disciosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

None.

Detail Notes on All Funds

A,

Assets
Deposits

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under
the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the Town's agents in the unit’s name. Under the Pooling
Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the
State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town’s agents in its
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for
non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories
using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral
covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or
the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the
Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may
increase in periods of high cash flows, However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict
standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling
Method, The Town has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions
and to monitor them for compliance. The Town complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when
designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2014, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $7,649,059 and a bank balance of

$7,653,990. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and
$7,153,990 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

Investments

At June 30, 2014, the Town of Sawmills had $70,189 invested with the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust’s Cash Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.

The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk.

Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The receivables shown in Exhibit 1 at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total - governmental activities

Business-type Activities:
Water and sewer

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total - business-type activities

Due from other governments consists of the following:

Local option sales tax
Utility franchise tax
Other

Capital Assets

Due from
Other

Accounts Taxes Governments
$ 26,125 $122,661 $201,392
- (8,000) -
$ 26,125 $114.661 $201.392
$ 72,495 3 - $ 24,935
{2.500) - -
$ 69,9095 b - § 24935

A summary of changes in the Town's governmental capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements (other than buildings)
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment
Parks
Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total

$350,178

8,000
$342.178

$97,430

(2.500)
$94.930

$149,146
44,972
7.274
$201.392

June 30, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014
$ 225239 b - $ - $§ 225239
433,873 59,842 - 493715
144,487 126,578 - 271,065
166,338 - - 166,338
38,925 - - 38,925
2,426,881 - - 2,426,881
758.990 238.800 - 097,790
3,969,493 425220 - 4,394,713
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

June 30, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities ~ continued:
Less accumulated depreciated for:

Buildings $ 144,201 $ 10,639 3 - § 154,840
Other improvements 11,158 - 5,867 - 17,066
Machinery and equipment 201,673 6,154 - 207,827
Office equipment 38,925 - - 18,925 °
Parks - 791,055 147,011 - 938,068
Vehicles 594,722 83,459 - 678,181
Total accumulated depreciation 1.781.775 $253.130 b - 2,034,905
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,187,718 2,359,808
Govermnmental activity capital assets, net $2,412.957 $2.585,046

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government 5 3,425
Environmental protection 71,624
Cultural and recreational 151,980
Transportation 26,101
Total depreciation expense $253,130

Proprietary Capital Assets
The capital assets of the Proprietary Fund of the Town at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

June 30,2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer Fund:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land § 5436 $ - $ - $ 5436
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,436 - - 3436

Capital assets being depreciated:

Water distzibution system 2,423,431 131,822 - 2,555,253
~ Sewer lines 3,212,973 - - 3,212,973
Equipment 179,758 - - 179,758
Vehicles 47.133 33,036 - 100,169
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,863,295 184,858 - 6,048,153
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water distribution system 863,277 44,249 - 907,526
Sewer lines 774,780 64,259 - £39,039
Equipment 88,250 15,420 - 103,670
Vehicles 36,857 7.671 - 44,528
Total accumulated depreciation 1,763,164 $131,59% by - 1,894,763
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,100,131 4,153,390
Water and Sewer fund capital assets, net $4,105.568 $4.158,826
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Liabilities
Payables
Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Salaries and

Vendors Benefits Other Total
Governmental activities:
General 5,183 8745 3 - 5928
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer $21,395 $194 $ - $21.589

Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations
Local Government Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description - The Town of Sawmills contributes to the statewide Local Government Employees’
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmenta!
Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the State of North Carolina, The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary.
The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Town, the current rate
for employees is 7.07% of annual covered payroll, The contribution requirements of members and of
the Town of Sawmills are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.
The Town’s contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 wers
$33,245, $30,324, and $42,209, respectively. The contributions made by the Town equaled the
required contributions for each year. '

Other Post-Employment Benefits

The Town has not elected to provide other post-employment benefits to employees.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Other Employment Benefits

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The
beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership
in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to Beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest
months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not
exceed §50,000 or be less than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit
Plan. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to
the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post employment benefit amount and the
other benefit amount. The Town considers these contributions to be immaterial.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

The balance in deferred inflows of resources at year end is as follows:

Unavailable
Revenue

Taxes receivables (net) $114.661

Risk Management

The Town of Sawmills is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town
carries commercial insurance coverage for risks of loss including property insurance of up to
$1,786,278; liability coverage of up to $2,000,000; and worker’s compensation up to the statutory
limits. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous vear and
settled claims resulting from risks have not exceeded coverage commercial insurance coverage in the

last five fiscal years.
The Town does not carry flood insurance.

In accordance with (G.S. 159-29, the Town ’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given
time of the Town’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance
officer and tax collector are each individually bonded for $50,000 each. The remaining employees
that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $100,000.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Long-Term Obligations
Notes Payable
Notes payable at June 30, 2014 are comprised of the following individual agreements:

Federal revolving loan for waterline capital project, annual

payments of $5,881, with no interest through May 2030 $94.090
Less current maturities 5,881
Long term portion $88.209

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Town’s notes payable are as follows:

Business-type Activities

Principal Interest
2015 $ 5,881 $ -
2016 5,881 -
2017 5,881 -
2018 5,881 -
2019 5,881 -
2020-2024 29,405 -
2025-2029 29,405 -
2030 5.875 -
Total proprietary funds $94.090 b -
A summary of changes in long-term obligations follows:
Current
July 1,2013  Increases  Decreases  June 30,2014 Portion
Governmental activities:
Accrued vacation pay $ 30,372 $ - $ 4310 $ 26,062 $
Total $ 30372 $ 4310 $ 26,062 3 -
Business-type activities:
Notes payable $ 99,971 &8 - $ 5,881 $ 94,090 $ 5,881
Accrued vacation pay 5,273 182 - 5,455 -
Total $105.244 § 182 § 5.881 $ 99,545 $ 5881

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the General Fund and are accounted for on a
LIFQ basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

At June 30, 2014, Town of Sawmills had a legal debt margin of $17,064,518.
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Interfund Balances and Activity

Transfer to/from other funds at June 30, 2014, consist of the following:

From the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund $60.000

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government must
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Fund Balance

The foliowing schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General
Fund balance that is available for appropriaticn:

Total fund balance-General Fund $4,291,356
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 227,517
Streets-Powell Bill 284,937
Remaining Fund Balance 3,778,902

The Town of Sawmills has adopted 2 minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which
instructs management to conduct the business of the Town in such a manner that available fund balance
is at least equal to or greater than 33% of budgeted expenditures,

Jointly Governed Organization

The Town, tn confunction with four counties and twenty-three other municipalities established the
Western Piedmont Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the
Council to coordinate various funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating
government appoints one member to the Council’s governing board. The Town paid $2,614 for
membership fees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,

Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies
Federal and State Assisted Programs

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants
are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.
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Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2014, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued. During the period from the end of the year and through this date,
no circumstances occurred that require recognition or disclosure in these financial statements.
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 1
Page 1 of 3
General Fund _
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budgef and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 -
With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
2014
Variance
Positive 2013
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes:
Taxes $ 396,550 509,927 433,013
Penalties and interest 2,750 9,334 5,157
399,300 519,261, § 119,961 438,170
Other taxes and licenses:
Local option sales tax 856,000 £90,480 34,480 864,710
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Franchise tax. 126,000 162,659 36,659 157,335
Restricted intergovernmental revenues;
"State Street-Aid" allocation and other grants 148,000 151,374 3,374 166,739
Permits and fees:
Zoning permits 500 910 410 2,686
Sales and services:
Refuse collections 194,000 187,934 (6,066) 191,324
Investment earnings 4,000 3,593 (407) 4,871
Miscellaneous revenues 5,100 9,388 4,288 7,080
Total revenues 1,732,900 1,925,508 192,698 1,832,915
Expenditures:
General government:
Governing body:
Salaries and employee benefits 14,300 14,803 14,964
Election cost 5,000 4,428 -
Other operating expenditures 13,050 7,930 7,465
Total governing body 32,350 27,160 5,190 22,429
cont.
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Schedule 1, cont,

Page2 of 3
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended June 30,2013
2014
Variance
Positive 2013
Budget - Actual (Negative) Actual

Expenditures (continued):
Administrative:

Salaries and employee benefits $ 199,200  § 184,582 § 176,103
Other operating expenditures 192,500 125,543 136,173
Interiocal agreement 280,000 280,000 400,000
Total administrative 671,700 390,125 $ 81,575 712,275
Finance:

Salaries and employee benefits 63,650 59,157 35,821
Other operating expenditures 4,250 2,075 3,510
Total finance 67,900 . 61,232 6,668 59,332
Total general government 771,950 678,517 93,433 794,036
Transportation:

Salaries and employee benefits 147,700 147,014 144,411

Other operating expenditures 385,675 247,652 311,815

Capital outlay 70,000 59,842 87,108
Total transportation 603,375 454,508 148,867 543,334
Environmental protection:

Sanitation:

Salaries and employee benefits 97,150 94,382 88,802

Other operating expenditures 96,950 58,162 76,436

Capital outlay 243,000 238,800 -
Total sanitation 437,100 391,344 45,756 165,237
Recycling:

Contracted services 66,000 62,8238 3,172 61,900
Total environmental protection 503,100 454,172 48,528 227,137

cont,
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 1, cont.

Page3 of 3
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
2014
Variance
Positive 2013
Budget Actual (Nepative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and physical development:
Planning and zoning:

Other operating expenditures $ 58,750 § 53048 8§ 5602 % 20,143
Cultural and recreational:

Parks and recreation:

Salaries and employee benefits 74,500 43,199 44,586

Other operating expenditures 110,950 56,693 105,301
Total cultural and recreational 185,450 99,892 85,558 149,887
Total expenditures 2,122,625 1,740,237 382,388 1,734,537
Revenues over (under) expenditures (389,725) 185,361 575,086 98,378
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfers in (out):

Captal reserve fund 60,000 60,000 - (150,000)
Fund balance appropriated 329,725 - (329,725) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 389,725 60,000 (329,725) (150,000)
Excess of revenues and other sources over _

(under) expenditures and other uses $ - 245,361 $ 245361 (51,622)
Fund balance, beginning of year - 4,045,995 4,097,616

Fund balance, end of year

4]

$4.291.356

$ 4,045,995




TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 2
‘ Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses) -
Budget and Actual '
From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Actual
_ Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Year Year to Date
Revenues;
Expenditures:
Vehicle $ 150,000 $ - $ (60,0000 $ (60,000)
Total expenditures 150,000 - 60,000 60,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures (150,000) - (60,000) (60,000)
Grther Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
Net change in fund balance b - $ 150,000 $ (60,0000 § 90,000
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Schedule 3
Page 1 of 2
_ Water and Sewer Fund -
Scheduie of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30,2014
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
2014
Variance
Positive 2013
Budaet Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:

Operating revenues: .

Charges for services $ 681,033 § 679,838

Taps and connections 2,000 2,000

Other operating revenues . 20,928 16,577
Total operating revenues § 691,022 703,961 5 12,939 698,414
Non-operating revenues:

Interest on investments 2,943 3,693
Capital contributions ) 9,738 : -
Total non-operating revenues 57,326 12,681 (84,045) 3,693
Total rcvahues 788,348 716,642 (71,706) 702,108
Expenditures:

Water distribution:

Water purchases 238,653 203,868

Sataries and employee benefits 113,135 109,586

Other operating expenditures 93,411 58,079

Principal retirement 16,381 16,381
Total water distribution 646,348 461,580 184,768 387,915
Sewer collection: :

Sewer charges 15,954 12,012

Salaries and employee benefits ‘ " 40,538 35,507

Other operating expenditures 77,876 33,332
Total sewer collection 142,000 134368 7,632 80,851
Total expenditures 788,348 595,048 192,400 468,766

cont,
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule 3, cont.
Page 2 of 2
Water and Sewer Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expénditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30,2014
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

2014
Variance
Positive 2013
Budget = Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues and over {undsr) expenditures $ - § 120,693 § 120,693 $ 233,341
Reconciliation From Budgetary Basis
(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual:
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ 120,693 § 233,341
Reconeiling ifterms:
Peyment on debt principal ' 16,381 16,381
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 183 &9
Capital projects 19,367
Depreciztion (131,599) (129,385)
Net income (loss) § 25024 $ 120,426
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Schedule 4
2012 Duff Drive Area Sewer Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Actual
Project Current Total
Authorization Year to Date
Revenues;
CDBG $ 750,000 $§ 73,108 § 73108
Total revenues 750,000 73,108 73,108
Expenditures:
Public sewer improvements 711,100 65,463 65,463
Administration 71,400 25,777 25,777
Planning 5,000 - -
Total expenditures 787,500 91,241 91,241
Revenues over {under) expenditures (37,500) (18,133) (18,133)
Other Financing Sources (USes)E
Town commitment 37,500 37,500 37,500
Total other financing sources {uses) 37,500 37,500 37,500
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 19367 $ 19367
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TOWN OF SAWMILLS, NORTH CAROLINA

_ Schedule 5
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30,2014
Uncollected Uncollected
Balance ' Collections Balance

Fiscal Year Julv 1, 2013 Additions And Credits June 30, 2014

2013 -2014 ' $ - §$512,025 § 474,746 % 37,279
2012 - 2013 50,747 - 24,994 25,753
2011 -2012 30,175 - 11,033 19,142
2010 - 2011 25,056 - 9,904 15,152
2009 - 2010 13,007 - 5,667 7,340
2008 - 2009 6,219 - 373 3,346
2007 - 2008 4,721 - 285 4,436
2006 - 2007 3,844 - 149 3,695
2005 - 2006 3,136 - 206 2,930
2004 - 2005 1,820 - 232 1,588
2003 - 2004 2,298 - 2,298 -
§ 141,023 §512.025 § 530.387 122,661

Less allowance for uncoliectible accounts:
8,000

(General fund

Ad valorem taxes receivable -~ net $ 114,661

Reconcilement with revenues: _

Taxes - Ad Valorem, General $ 519,355

Penalties and interest collected (9,334)

Collection fees ' 13,414

Discounts and miscellaneous adjustments 4,654

Amount written off 2,298
$ 530,387
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, Schedule 6
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Town - Wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Town Wide Registered  Registered
Property Motor Motor
Valuation Rate  Total Levy Vehicles Yehicles
Original levy:
Property taxes at current year rate  $ 255,941,605 020 $ 511,884 $ 428,966 $ 82,918
Penalties - 141 141 -
Total 255,941,605 512,025 429,107 82,918
Discoveries - - - -
Abatements - - - -
Total property valuation $ 255,941,605
Net levy 512,025 429,107 82,918
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2014 ' 37,279 27,786 9,493
Current year's tax collected § 474,746 § 401,321 § 73,425
Current levy coliection percentage 92.72% 93.52% 88.53%
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Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N. Sterling Street
Morganton, North Carolina 28655
' Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statemenis
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Mayor and Members
of the Town Council and Citizens
Town of Sawmills, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Sawrmills, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated October 3, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Sawmills, North
Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described below that we consider to be significant

deficiencies,
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Inadequate Segrepation of Duties
Condition:”  The size of the Town’s accounting and admlmstratlvc staff precludes certain internal

controls that would be preferred if the office staff were large enough to provide optimum
segregation of duties, The governing board should remain involved in the financial =
affairs of the Town to provide oversight.

Effect: Material misstaternents could occur whether due to fraud or error and not be detected on
a timely basis.

Response: ~  The governing board will remam involved in the ﬂnanclal affairs in order to provide
oversight..

Preparation of the Financial Statements

Condition: Lowdermilk Church & Co., LLP (the independent auditors) prepared the draft financial
statements for the Town. As with most smaller organizations, this becomes necessary
dus to the cost benefit of either ouit-sourcing or hiring personnel with the expertise to

prepare financial statements in conformity with generally aceepted accounting principles.

Effect: The financial statements may not be prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), -
Response: The Town Council and management will continue services with the independent

accountants to prepare the financia! statements in accordance WIth generally accepted
accounting principles. :

Compliznce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing ari opinion on compliancc with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requlrcd to be reported
under Government Audmn;z Standards

Town of Sawmi]ls, North Cﬁrolix_;é.fs Response to Findings '

Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described previously.
Town of Sawmills, North Carolina’s response was not subjected to the auditing proccdures appllcd in the andit of
the financial statements and, accordmgly, Wwe express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report |

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliancc This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal coatrol and compliance, Accordingty, this commumcatlon is not

suitable for any other purpose.

e+

Morganton, North Carolina
October 3, 2014
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AGENDA ITEM 8D

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Financial Matters:
' Approve Auditors
Contract for
FY 2014-2015
Discussion:

Enclosed with this memo is a contract from our current anditing firm Lowdermilk, Church &
Co., L..L.P. The contract, in the amount of $10,050.00 (ten thousand fifty dollars), will cover the
period of July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015.

This amount of $10,050.00 includes the following:

Audit: $6,530.00
Preparation of annual financial statements: $3,520.00

This amount includes continual guidance, advice and directives throughout the year from the
auditors concerning any issues that may arise throughout the fiscal year.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends Council approve a contract with Lowdermilk, Church & Co., L.L.P. in the
amount of $10,050.00 (ten thousand fifty dollars) and covering the period of July 1, 2014 to June
30, 2015.



LGC-205 (Rev. 2014)
CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

Town of Sawmills

ot Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable
On this 14t day of Oclober , 2014 ;
Auditor Lowdemnllk Ghureh & Ce., LLP Auditor Mailing Address: 121 Norih Sterling Streat, Morganton, NG 23665
Hereinafter referred to as The Auditor
and Town Coungl (Governing Board () of_Town of sawmils

: hersinafter referred to as the Governmental Unit (s), agree as follows:

Governmental Unit ()

1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required byl generzlly accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
additional required legal staternents and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the Governmental Unit (s) for the period
beginning July 1 , 2014 , and ending <une 30 , 206 . The non-major combining, and
individual fund statements and schedules shall be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
staternents and an opinion will be rendered in relation to {as applicable) the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate DPCU’s, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-major
government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

2. At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct his/her audit and render his/her report in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. The Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government duditing Standards if required by the State Single
Audit Implementation Act, as codified in G.5. 159-34, If required by OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and the Siate Single Audit Implementation Act, the Auditor shall perform a Single Audit. This
andit and all associated workpapers may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit
and/or workpapers are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review may be forwarded to the North Carolina
State Board of CPA Examiners (NC CPA Board).

County and Multi-County Health Departments: The Office of State Auditor will designate certain programs that have eligibility
requircments to be considered major programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the State of North Carolina, The
LGC will notify the auditor and the County and Multi-Health Department of these programs. A County or a Multi-County
Health Department may be selected to audit any of these programs as major,

3, If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit standards - the entity’s auditor
will make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of the group auditor in accordance with AU-6
§600.41 - §600.42,

4. This contract contemplates an unqualified opinion being rendered. The audit shall include such tests of the accounting records
and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the circumstances, Any limitations or
restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully explained in an attachment to this contraet.

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing Standards, 2011 revisions,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this engagement, the Auditor warrants that he has met
the requirements for a peer review and continuing education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees
to provide a_copy of their most recent peer veview report regardless of the date of the prior peer review report to the
Governmental Unit and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of the audit contract (See Item 22). If the audit firm
received a peer review rating other than pass, the Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit without first
contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements,

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not prepared in
accordance with GAAP and fail to include all disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why
in an attachment.,

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of audit submitted to the
State and Local Government Finance Division (SLGFD) within four months of fiscal year end. Audit report is due on:
October 31 2015 . If it becomes necessary to amend this due date or the audit fee, an amended
contract along with a written cxplanatmn of the delay must be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.




Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Town of Sawmills
Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

7. It is agreed that generally accepied auditing standards include a review of the Governmental Unit’s systems of internal control
and accounting as same relates to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements applicable thereto; that
the Auditor will make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written report of audit, to the Governing Board
setting forth his findings, together with his recommendations for improvement. That written report must include all matters
defined as “significant deficiencies and material weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified).
The Auditor shall file a copy of that report with the Secretary of the LGC.

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of the Secretary of the
LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other
assistance necessary to prepare the Governmenta! Unit’s records for audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related
investigations, or any other audit-related work in the State of North Carolina, Invoices for services rendered under these
contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit until the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the IL.GC,
(This also includes any progress billings.} [G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447] All invoices for Audit work must be submitted by email
in PDF format to the Secretary of the L.GC for approval,  The invoices must be sent to: lge.invoice@netreasurer.com . Subject
line should read “Invoice — [Unit Name]. The PDF invoice marked ‘approved’ with approval date will be returned by email to
the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit for payment, Approval is not required on contracts and inveices for system
improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature,

9. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental Unit shall pay to the
Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, the following fee, which includes any cost the Auditor may ineur from work
paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program requlred by third parties (Federal and State grantor and oversight
agencies or other organizations) as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts:

Year-end bookkeeping assistance — [For audits subject to Government Auditing Standards, this is limited to bookkeeping services

permitted by revised Independence Standards) $ -
Audit 6,530

Preparation of the annual financial statements 3,520

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report, applicable compliance reports and amended contract (if required) the
Auditor may submit invoices for approval for services rendered, not to exceed 75% of the total of the stated fees above. If the current
contracted fee is not fixed in total, invoices for services rendered may be approved for up to 75% of the prior year audit fee. The 75%
cap for interim imvoicé approval for this audit contract {s §_ 7,535 ** NA if no interim billing

10. If the Governmental Unit has outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall include documentation either in the notes to the
audited financial statements or as a separate report submitted to the SLGFD along with the audit report, a calculation
demonstrating compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor should be aware that any other bond
compliance statements or additional repotts required in the authorizing bond documents need to be submitted to the SLGFD
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's audited financial statements unless otherwise specified in the bond documents.

11,  After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit, This report shall include
but not be limited to the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, (b) the firancial statements and
notes of the Governmental Unit and all of its component units prepared in accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary
information requested by the client or required for full disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material
presented. The Auditor shall furnish the required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board as soon as
practical after the close of the accounting period.

12, Ifthe audit firm is required by the NC CPA Board or the Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of their audit work,
there must be a statement added to the engagement letter specifying the pre-issuance review including a statement that the
Governmental Unit will not be billed for the pre-issuance review, The pre-issuance review must be performed prior to the
completed audit being submitted to the LGC. The pre-issuance report must accompany the audit report upon submission to the
LGC,

13, The Auditor shail electronically submit the report of audit to the LGC when (or prior to) submitting the invoice for services
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for inspection, review
and copy in the offices of the SLGFD by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to these reports must be sent to the
Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements are used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings (the
Auditors’ opinion is not included) by municipal bond rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Comumission and other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit without subsequent consent of the



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.)

14,

15.

16.

18.

19,

20.

21,

22,

23,

Town of Sawmills

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit's (DPCU) if applicable

Auditor, If it is determined by the LGC that corrections need o be made to the Governmental Unit’s financial statements, they
should be provided within three days of notification unless, another time frame is agreed to by the LGC.

If the OSA designates certain programs to be audited as major programs, as discussed in item #2, a turnaround document and a
representation letter addressed to the OSA shall be submitted to the LGC,

The LGC’s process for submitting contracts, audit reports and Invoices is subject to change. Auditors should use the submission
process in effect at the time of submission. The most current instructions will be found on our website:
https://www.netreasurer. com/slg/Him/forms-instructions/Pages/ Annual-Audit-Forms-and-Resources. aspx

Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than necessary under ordinary
circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for such additional investigation and the
additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the Secretary of the 1.GC, this contract may be varied or changed
to include the increased time and/or compensation as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor

If an approved contract needs to be varied or changed for any reason, the change must be made in writing, signed and dated by
all parties and pre-audited if the changs includes a change in audit fee. This document and a written explanation of the change
must be submitted by ermail in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC for approval, The portal address to upload your amended
contract and letter of explanation documents is  http//netreasurer.slgfd. leapfile.net No change shall be effective unless
approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the Governing Board, and the Auditor,

Whenever the Auditor uses an engagement letter with the Governmental Unit, Item #17 is to be completed by referencing the
engagement letter and attaching a copy of the engagement letter to the contract to incorporate the engagement letter into the
contract. In case of conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract
will contrgl, Engagement letter terms are deemed to be void unless the conflicting terms of this contract are specifically deleted
in Item #23 of this contract. Engagement letters containing indemnification clauses will not be appraved by the LGC,

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment. See Atrtached Engagement letter

A separate contract should not be made for each divisien to be audited or report to be submitted. If a DPCU is subject to the
audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a
separate audit contract is required. If a separate repott is not issued and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit,
the DPCU must be named along with the parent government on this audit contract. Signatures from the DPCU Board chairman
and finance officer also must be included on this contract.

The contract must be executed, pre-audited, physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit and Auditor signatures
and submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC. The current portal address to upload your contractual documents is
http://nctreasurer.sigfd leapfile.net Electronic signatures are not accepted at this time. Included with this contract are
instructions to submit contracts and invoices for approval as of April, 2014, These instructions are subject to change. Please
check the NC Treasurer’s web site at www nctreasurer.com for the most recent instructions.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the LGC Secretary, The staff of the LGC shall notify the Govermmental Unit and
Auditor of contract approval by email, The andit should not be started before the contract is approved.

There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that shall be enforceable unless
entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the Secretary of the LGC.

Municipal & County Contracts: The Auditor acknowledges that any private employer transacting business in this State who
employs 25 or more employees in this State must, when hiring an employee to work in the United States, use E Verify to verify
the work authorization of the employee in accordance with N.C.G.8. §64 26(a). The Auditor acknowledges further that any such
private employer and its subcontractors must comply with all of the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (North Carolina’s E-verify law), and that such private employer has a duty under the law to ensure
compliance by its subcontractors. The Auditor further acknowledges that this contract is of the type governed by 8.L, 2013-418,
which makes it unlawful for a local government to enter into certain types of contracts unless the contractor and its
subcontractors comply with North Caroling’s E-verify law, and that failure to comply with such law could render this contract
vaid. The Auditor hereby covenants, warrants and represents for itself and its subcontractors that with respect to this contract the
Auditor and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of North Carolina’s E-verify law and that failure to comply with
such law shall be deemed a breach of this contract and may render this contract void, N/2

All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following numbered paragraphs shail be
deleted: (See Item 16 for clarification).



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) TOWH Of SanI”S

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit's (DPCU) if applicable

Communication regarding audit contract requests for modification or official approvals will be sent to the

email addresses provided in the spaces below.

Audit Firm Signature:

Lowdermilk Church & Co., LLP

Name of Audit Firm

nydames E. Lowdgrmi!k i

e or print

i Atdit Firm:

5ate ) //é '/7//'-/

Governmental Unit Signatures:

ByTrena McRary Kirby - Mayor, Pro Tem

Mayor / Chairperson: Type or print name and title

Sighature of Mayor/Clairperson of governing board

Date

Unit Signatures (continued):

., N/A

Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print narme

# ok

Signature of Audit Committee Chairperson
DateNA

** If Governmental Unit has no audit commiitee, this section
should be marked "N/A."

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28 (a)
This instrument has been preandited in the manner required by
The Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the
School Budget and Fiscal Control Act, Additionally, the following
date is the date this audit contract was approved by the governing
body.

s, Karen Clontz

Governmental Unit Finance Officer: Type or print name

By

DPCU Chairperson: Type or print name and title

' Chairpérson of DPCU if applic

Financé Officér Sigi
kclontz@townofsawmllls com
ess of Finance Officer

Date

(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.)

Date Governing Body Approved Audit Contract - G.S.
159-34(x)

Board Approval Date — Primary Government

Board Approval Date - DPCU




Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N, Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

Town of Sawmills October 14, 2014
4076 US Highway 321-A
Sawmills, North Carolina 28630

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Town of Sawmills for the year
ended June 30, 2015. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Town of Sawmills as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2015, Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America
provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis
(MD&A), to supplement Town of Sawmills® basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Town of
Sawmills’ RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, These
limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We will not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by
generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to cettain limited procedures, but will not be
audited:

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Town of
Sawmills’ financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an
opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report combined with our auditor’s report on
the financial statements:

1. Individual Fund Financial Statements
2. Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
3. Schedule of Current Year Tax Levy




Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report
on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation
to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of
the accounting records of Town of Sawmills and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express
such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Town of Sawmills’ financial
statements. Our report will be addressed to management and the governing board of Town of Sawmills, We
cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is
necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on
the financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any
reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to
express opinions ot issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph
that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph wili
also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Town of
Sawmills is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial
statements and related notes. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing
Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You
agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any
other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and
approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for
them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those
services; and accept responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and
regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported.
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of
accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting prineiples, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the
provisions of contracts and grant agreements.



Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for
the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to
all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted
access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material
effect on the financial statements, Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees,
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring
that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking
timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any
document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to
[include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes
our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary
information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon]. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, {s fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant
findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other
studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well ag your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for
providing that information. With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including
financial statements published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to
consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document,




Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
areas to be tested, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than
absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1)
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the
government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of
management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to
our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or
governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse
that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does
not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may include direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with
selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this
inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your
responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements;
and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature,
timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of
certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the
financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other
noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed,
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no
opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional
standards and Government Auditing Standards.




Audit Procedures—Com pliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financia] siatements are free of materia]
misstatement, we will perform tests of Town of Sawmills’ compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
reguiations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in ouy report on compliance issued
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards,

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

The audit documentation for this engagement wiil be retained for 5 minimum of five years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the Local Government Commission, If we are aware that a federa|
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for al out-of-pocket costs through the date
of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that
unexpected circumstances will not he encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary,
we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. We are required
to inform you that we charge interest at rate of | 8% per annum on all invoices over 30 days old.




You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this occurs, we
will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees. We also may
issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In the absence of any other written
communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will continue to be governed by the
terms of this engagement letter.

Our audit engagement ends on delivery of our audit report, Any follow-up services that might be required will be
a separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new,
specific engagement letter for that service.

We are providing you with a copy of our 2012 external peer review report which accompanies this letter,
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Town of Sawmills and believe this letter accurately summarizes

the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the !
terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us,

Very truly yours,

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Town of Sawmills.

Management signature:

Title:

Date:

Governance signature:

Title:

Date:
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mpanV} LLE Certitied Public Accoun.tants and Advisors Since 1947

System Review Report -

September 27, 2012

To the Partners of Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
and the Peer Review Committee of the North Carolina
Association of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P. (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2012. Our peer
review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer
Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying
with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s compliance therewith based
on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a
System Review are described in the standards at www.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed
under Government Auditing Standards and audits of employee benefit plans.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P. in effect for the vear ended May 31, 2012, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can
receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P. has
received a peer review rating of pass.

Bumscd) Rotonton & Lonpancy., 557

BERNARD ROBINSON & COMPANY, L.L.P.

Office: 1501 Highwoods Blvd,, Suite 300 ~ Greensboro, NC 27410 Mermber of  Global Association \FQ -

Mailing: PO, Box 19408 ~ Greensboro, NC 27419-9408 of Indepandent Accountng ﬁ* ERE!SW“ 5

Phone (334) 294-4494 ~ Fax (336} 294-4495 ~ www.brccpacom and Consultancy Firms




AGENDA ITEM 8E

MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Financial Matters:
Request for a Donation
To Caldwell County
Smart Start
Discussion:

The Town has received a request from Caldwell County Smart Start for a donation in the amount
of $250.00 (two hundred fifty dollars).

There are sufficient funds in the budget for this request.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends Council discuss this matter and decide how they wish to proceed.




Bob Gibby, Mayor

T OW OF SA WMILLS Seth Eckard, Town Ad'minisfrator

Funding Request

Name of Organizagion: Mwm#ﬁmﬁﬁﬁnﬁme: % 28~ W 2lo- 5 U3

Permanent Address: PO B 212 &

City: L eiBiy Staté: Nf 2 Zip Code: M
Contact Name: _A;WLLS_

]0 rmsohoal ., er - 11 . mmmt‘ $€ﬁmmum~]-}(
Amount Requested: 3 5 { ) ™ Amount Needed for the Project:

Date Funds Needed:Dez, ' |H_Date Project Begins:5gpj: ' 14 Completion Date: %jﬂp

Luﬁyh\ e C% Hu& 5“" Ath‘%ch\L
How will this ptoject benefit the commup
T Ahwcf’ eracy .

Qfficial. s Use Only
Date applicacion received _[1/)1 /14 Diate presented to Town Council __ 1! / il / /4

Date Approvad _ Denied . Amount Apptoved

Available Balance in Governing Body Donations Expense Acct: 4 ]700 00

Date Check Wiitten Check No, Amount




AGENDA ITEM 10A

- MEMO
DATE: November 18, 2014
SUBJECT: Updates:
Code Enforcement
Monthly Report
Discussion:

The attached report shows the progress that Planner Elinor Hiltz continues to make throughout
the town.

Recommendation:
No Council action required.
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